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Independent Audit Report

To,

The Members,

Mas Solar Systems Limited(formerly known as Mas Solar Systems Private limited),
Coimbatore.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements,
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Mas Solar Systems
Limited(formerly known as Mas Solar Systems Private limited). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independént of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.



Key Audit Matters

be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Systems Limited.

affect the amounts reported in the financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
impl

These events do not 1
2025, but may have plications for future reporting periods. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of

these matters,

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the



e. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any dividend during the year; accordingly
reporting under Rule 11 (f) is not applicable to the company.

3. Based on our examination which included test-eheeks;the-companyhas used-am accounting software

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,

during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

(i)  As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (8) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 3 1,2025

For T Nagaraju & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 025167S

WE
T NAGARAJU

Parmer
Membership No: 029312

Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 05%, 2025



Annexure 'A’' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of my
report of even date)

Re; MAS SOLAR SYSTEMS LIMITED {romammwnwmkﬁﬁﬁEMs—PﬁwAﬁ—um—
(the “Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by me and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by me in the normal course of audit and to the best of my knowledge and
belief, | state that:

(i) a. (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The company does not have any intangible assets. Thus reporting under clause 3(i)(a) is not
applicable.

b. The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to me, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on the examination of
records of the company and the registered sale deeds / transfer deeds / conveyance deeds
provided to me, | report that the titie deeds of all the immovable properties, comprising of land
and building, are in the name of the company as at the Balance Sheet date.

d. As the company is not revaluated its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible assets,
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applécable.

e. Based on the information and explanation furnished to me, no proceedings have been initiated on
the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) and Rules made there under.

As explained to me, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management
at reasonable intervals and in my opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is
approprlate. Based on the information and explanation furnished to me, no material discrepancies
in excess of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical
verification.

b. During the year, the company has not been sanctioned, any point of time of the year, warking
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of
current assets. Hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

w

(ii)

(i) During the year the Company has not made investments in, provided loans, advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Hence, the requirement to report under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have
been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit, within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year hence, the
1



reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

in my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me the maintenance of cost
records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 has not been specified by
the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities
carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

Company.

a. According to the information and explanations given to me and according to the books and
records as produced and examined by me, in respect of statutory dues, the Company has been
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authorities. As at last day of financial year, there wereé no amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to me, there were no disputed dues on
account of the aforesaid statutory dues as at the year end and hence, reporting under clause
3(vii)(b) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year.

s According to the books and records of the Company examined by me, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

b. According to the information and explanation given to me and on the basis of my audit procedure,
| report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lenders. '

c. In my opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to me, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, | report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, | report that the company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, | report that the company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

a. The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments). Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or partially or optionally
convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

2



(xi)

a. To the best of my knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to me and
on the basis of examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practices in India, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
was noticed or reported during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to me, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

c. According to the information and explanations given to me including the representation made 1
me by the management of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints were received by the
Company during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

a. The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
Accounting Standards.

a. In my opinion and based on my examination, the company has an internal audit system which is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. Since the reports of Internal Auditor have not been made available for my verification, the same
has not been considered by me.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, during the year,
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him and accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

b. In my Opinion and based on my examination, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.

c. In my opinion and based on my examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

d. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group does not
have not more than one CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(d) is not applicable to the Company.

Based on my examination of books of accounts, the Company has not incurred any cash loss in the
current as well as the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, my
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on my examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to my attention, which causes me to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. |, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
3



the future viability of the Company. | further state that my reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and | neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and

when they fall due.

(xx) a. The provision of section 135 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting clause 3(xxi) of the order Is not mre—m—mmmpany—as—ﬂ—hae—ﬂﬂ—sﬂbﬁdﬂw—

company.

For T Nagaraju & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 025167S

SRS 'S

T NAGARAJU
Partner
Membership No: 029312

Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 05, 2025



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106TZ2010PLC016269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2024
April 01,2023



MAS Solar Systems Limited ( Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLC016269

Shed No 133, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
f A [ASSETS
L[ Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 7954 8401 106 36
(b) Financial Assets
(i) [nvestments 4 6198 6198 a
(ii) Others Non Current Financial Assets 5 21.83 2246 23.21
(c] Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 23.95 17.97 12.79
Total Non-Current Assets 187.30 186.43 142.37
2{Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 18.80 486.89 470,60
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 1,509.92 863.00 574.83
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 4.67 1343 1415
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 10 50.72 8.41 5.95
(iv) Others Current Financial Assets 3 55.88 63.61 6111
(c) Other Current Assets 12 35,92 333.28 225.20
Total Current Assets 1,675.91 1,768.62 1,351.89
Total Assets 1,863.21 1,955.05 1,494.26
B |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1| Equity
(#) Equity Share Capital 13 600.00 600.00 600.00
(b) Other Equity 14 570.43 255.59 148.89
Total Equity 1,170.43 B55.59 748.89
2| Liabilities
(A) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 3.70 5.15 20.39
(b) Provisions 16 31.60 3042 2236
Total Non-Current Liabilities 35.30 35.58 42.75
(B) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 43821 402.42 403,92
(ii) Trade Payables 18
(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and Small enterprises 18.1 a 4.78 0.52
(b) Totat outstanding dues of
creditors other than Micro
enterprises and Small enterprises 182 8.41 84.14 101.26
(iii) Other Financial Liabilitics 19 = - 3.99
(b) Other Current Liabilities 20 125.09 533.64 191.57
(c) Provisions 21 1.34 1.07 0.59.
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 84.43 37.84 0.79
* Total Current Liabilities 637.47 1,063.88 702.63
; Total Equity and Liabilities 1,863.21 | 1,955.05 | 1,494.26
Material and Other Accounting Policies| 2
L The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For T Nagaraju & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0251678

T NAGARAJU

Parmer
Membership No.: 029312

Place = Coimbatore
Date = September 03, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems

Private Limited)

y- Yo

b 2 oiy

Palaniswamy Anbazhagan Kuppuraj Suganthi
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 01893658 DIN: 06906063

Sampa umar :-"iunesh Ammiyappan n
CFO Company Secretary

Place ' Cotmbatore

TCSIM No  F8665

Dale  Seprember 05, 2023




MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: 40106TZ2010PLC016269

Shed No 153, SIDCO I[ndustrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(At amounT in T Cakdis, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Sove | March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
i ncome:
1| Revenue from Operations 23 327645 1,951.03
2|Other Income 24 4.67 46.81
3 Total Income (1+2) 3281.12 1,997.84
4|Expenses
(a) Cost of materials & services consumed 25 2,447 .49 1,567.85
(b) Employee benefits expense 26 162.25 154.61
(c) Finance costs 27 17.43 26,17
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 18.40 2291
(e) Other expenses 29 218.50 79.79
Total Expenses 2,864.08 1.851.34
5|Profit before tax (3 - 4) 417.04 146.50
6| Tax expense
(a) Current tax 6 (b) 113.53 42.30
(b) Deferred tax 6(a) (7.84) (4.45)
Total Tax expense 105.69 37.84
7[Profit for the period / year (5 -6) 31135 108.66
8| Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans 451 (2.89)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 6 (c) (1.86) 0.73
(B) [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequeat periods:
Income tax rclating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss i - =
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2.65 (2.16)
9|Total comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 314.00 106.50
Earnings/(Loss) per equity share [Nominal value of share Rs. 10] 30
Basic (Rs. per share) 5.19 1.81
Diluted (Rs. per share) 5.19 1.81
Material and Other Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For T Nagaraju & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0251675

T NAGARAJU
Partner
Membership No: 029312

Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 05, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS
Solar Systems Private Limited)

5\
Palapiswamy Anbazhagan Kuppuraj Suganthi
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 01893658 DIN: 06906063

e i)

%mm\m,&mﬁaﬁ\/\&
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No.: F8663

Sam I{un:;r Suresh

CFO

Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 05, 2025



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLCN16269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31,2025

(All amount in T Lakhs, unless otherwize stated)

Particulars %’o‘e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income:
| (Revenue from Operations 23 3,276.45 1,951.03
2| Other Income 24 4.67 46.81
3 Total Income (1+2) 3281.12 1,997.84
4|Expenses
(a) Cost of materials & services consumed 25 2,447.49 1,567.85
(b) Employee benefits expense 26 162.23 154.61
(c) Finance costs 27 17.43 26.17
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 18.40 2291
(e) Other expenses 29 218.50 79.79
Total Expenses 2,864.08 1.851.34
5| Profit before tax (3 - 4) 417.04 146.50
6|Tax expense
(a) Current tax 6 (b) 113.53 42.30
{b) Deferred tax 6 (a) (7.84) (4.45)
Total Tax expense 105.69 37.84
7|Profit for the period / year (5 <6) 311.35 108.66
8(Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent|
periods:
Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans 451 (2.89)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 6 (c) (1.86) 0.73
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss ' - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year| 2.65 (2.16)
9|Total comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 314.00 106.50
Earnings/(Loss) per equity share [Nominal value of share Rs. 10] 30 |
Basic (Rs. per share) 5.19 1.81
Diluted (Rs. per share) 5.19 1.81
Material and Other Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements,

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

N, i MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS
For T Nagaraju & Co Solar Systems Private Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 025167S

M W4V> 2 Palaniswamy Anbazhagan Kuppuraj Suganthi

Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 01893658 DIN: 06906063
T NAGARAJU
Parmer é : S E
Membership No: 029312 Sampath Kumar Suresh Umyﬁﬁnﬂm«-ﬁa\f)\
CFO Company Secretary
ICSI M.No.: F8665
Place : Coimbatore Place : Coimbatore

Date : September 05, 2025 Date : September 05, 2025



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLC016269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amouunt in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

| Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- i By MY ES
PROFTT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 417.03 146.50
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 18.40 2291
Finance Cost 17.43 26.17
Bad Debts 13.91 ”
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 19.09 6.80
Assets written off 0.18 -
Loss on Sale of PPE - 0.29
Intzrest income (2.12) (0.92)
Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 483.94 201.76
(Increase)/Decrease in [nventories 468.09 (16.29)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (679.92) (294.97)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets 837 (L75)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets 298.01 (107.87)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade payables (80.50) (12.87)
(InereaseVDecrease in Other financial liability - (4.00)
(Increase)Decrease in Provisions 5.96 566
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current liabilities (408.56) 342.08
Cash flow from/ (used in) Operations 9539 11174
Direct taxes paid (including TDS receivables) - Net (66.93) (5.24)
NET CASH FROM/USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 28.46 106.50
B) CA W FROM IN NG AC S
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (13.93) (1.18)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment = 033
Fixed Deposits (42.32) (2.42)
Interest income 2,12 0.92
Cash outflow on account of Investment in Subsidiaries - (61.98)
NET CASH FROM /(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (54.13) (64.33)
C LOW FR FINANCING A i S
Proceeds from/(Repayment for) Borrowings 16.90 (42.90)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 16.90 (42.90)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) (%4} 0.72)
Add: Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 13.43 14.15
|Cash & Cash equivalents as at the end of the year - Note No. 9 4.67 13.43
As per our report of even date aftached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For T Nagaraju & Co MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS
Chartered Accountants Solar Systems Private Limited)

Firm registration number: 0251575 Y
‘Q’M k U —Sy W

Palaniswamy Anbazhagan Kuppuraj Suganthi

Managing Director Whole-time director
T NAGARAJU DIN: 01893658 DIN: 06906063
Parmer
Membership No: 029312 && w
Sampath Kumar Suresh Ammayappan Arjunan
CFO Company Secretary
ICSI M.No.: F8665
Place : Coimbatore Place : Coimbatore

Date : Septemnber 05, 2025 Date : September 05, 2025
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MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLC016269

Shed No 133, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity

A |Equity Share Capital No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each, Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (as per Previous AS) 6,000,000 600.00
Add/ (Less): Adjustments on account of Ind AS adoption (Ind AS 101) - =
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 (as per Ind AS) 6,000,000 600.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year (issue / buyback / forfeiture, etc.) - S
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2024 6.000,000 §00.00_
Changes in equity share capital during the year (issue / buyback / forfeiture, etc.) = =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 6,000,000 600.00
Reserves &
Other
B | Other Equity Surp.lus Comprehensive L (.)th"
Retafm:d Income Eqwey
Earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (as per AS) 172.93 3 172.93
Remeasurement of Property, Plant & Equipments 0.73 - 0.73
\Remeasurement of Deferred Tax Assets 753 - 7.53
[Remeasurment of defined benefit asset (net of tax) -22.95 - -22.95
{Remeasurement of Provision for Audit Fees -1.05 - -1.05
{R=measurement of Provision for Income Tax 0.06 - 0.06
\Remeasurement of Provision for Expected Credit Loss -8.38 - -8.38
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 (as per [nd AS) 148.89 - l%
\Profit for the year 108.66 - 108.66
\Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - -2.16 -2.16
‘Other Adjustments 0.21 - 0.21
as at March 31, 2024 2'57.75 -ﬁlﬁ ﬁ255.59
for the year 31135 - 31135
comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - 2.65 265
Adjustments 0.84 - 0.34
as at March 31, 2025 569.95 i-‘l} 57043

As per our report of even date attached
For T Nagaraju & Co

Carrered Accountants

S registration number: 0251673

T NAGARAJU
Frmmer

M=mbership No: 029312

Pac= - Coimbatore
D= - September 05, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS

Solar Systems Private Limited)
{

i . Lrontin
Palaniswamy Anbazhagan Kuppuraj Suganthi
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 01893638 DIN: 06906063

s |

Ammayappan Arjunan

Company Secretary
ICSI M.No.: F8665

Sampath Kumar Suresh
CFO

Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 03, 2025



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: 40106 TZ2010PL.C016269

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

Notes to Standalone Financials St

Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 {Property, plant and equipment (PPE)]  Land Building Plant & | Furniture and | Computers Office Vehicles Total |
| Marehimery——Fixtures- SqUIpMEnts
[ |

Gross Block (Cost or Deemed cost)
At April 01, 2023 13.84 19.20 18.12 1.78 1.23 4.16 48.03 106.36
Additions - - - 0.10 1.08 - - 1.18
Disposals - - = - - - (2.40) (2.40)
At March 31, 2024 13.84 19.20 18.12 1.88 2.31 4.16 45.63 105.14
Additions - = = 4.08 2.07 . 7.78 13.93
Disposals - ) % _ " - o =
At March 31, 2025 13.84 19.20 18.12 5.96 4.38 4.16 33.41 119.07
Accumulated Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - - = = = - - -
Charge for the year - 1.83 3.26 0.47 1.14 1.40 14.81 2291
Disposals - - = = - - (1.78) (1.78)
At March 31, 2024 - 1.83 3.26 0.47 _ 114 1.40 13.03 21.13
Charge for the year = 1.65 2.66 0.96 L2 0.76 11.25 18.40
Disposals . & = = - . - a
At March 31, 2025 - 3.48 592 143 2.26 2.16 24.28 _39.53 |
Carrying amount (Net)
At April 01, 2023 13.84 19.20 18.12 1.78 1.23 4.16 48.03 106.36
At March 31, 2024 13.84 17.37 14.86 141 1.17 2.76 32.60 84.01
At March 31, 2025 . 13,84 15.72 12.20 4.53 2.12 2.00 29.13 79.54 |

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption in relation to the
carrying amount has been considered as the

April 01, 2023 under the Previous GAAP

Deemed cost as on April 01, 2023

property, plant and equipment on the date of the initial application and hence the net

Accumulated e
- treated as
Gross Block| Depreciation deemed cost
. q (At Cost) as and - ST
Particulars as at April 1, 2023 an April 01, | Amo tion |_|!mn
transition on
2023 till April 01,
2023 April 01,
2023
&) Property, Plant & Equipment
Land 13.84 - 13.84
Building 37.24 18.04 19.20
Plant & Machinery 88.26 70.14 1812
Furniture & Fixtures 545 3.67 1.78
Computers & Equipments 12.37 11.14 1.23
Office Equipment 12.69 8.53 4.16
Vehicles 83.68 35.65 48.03
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 253.53 147.17 106.36

gtoss carrying amount on that date. Refer note below for the gross carrying value & accumulated depreciation on



MAS Solar Systems Limited (¥ ormely known as MAS Solur Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106TZ2010PLCO1626Y

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Mal hampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,
Notes to Standalone Fi dals Stat ¢ for the year ended March 31, 3025 (Al in € Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
4 |Financial Assets - Nop-Current Investments March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
{nvestments in equity shares, fully paid up - at cost:
In domestic subsidiaries
Lnquated
AAS Solar EPC Doyt irnated 198 6198 =
Total 61.98 61.98 -

Note: The above shares have been acquired at a premium of 22 per share, over and above the face value of 2100 cach.Investments are carried at cost unless otherwise smmed.

¢) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

5 |Other non-current financial assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
Ainsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Secunty dsposits 21.83 22.46 23.21
Total 21.83 22,46 _23.21 |
6 ) Movemest in Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilifies
Deferred Tax Amet/(Lishilities) as at March 31, | - Net Balance as at Movement duriag the year Net Balance as at
2025: Aprl |, 024 | Recomisedinthe | Reoognised in Otber | March 31,2025
Statement of | Comprebensive [pcome
Profit snd Loss
Deferred Tax Asseta / (Liabilites)
Property, Plact and Equipment 8 481 . 104
Employes Benefits 19 0 186 429
Altowance for expected Credit loss 382 481 463
Deferred Tax Assety/ (Linbifities) 1197 184 L.86 BB
Deferred Tax Asset/(Linbilities) as at March 31, | Net Balance a4 at Movement doring the year Net Balance 2 at
WU April 1,023 | Recoguised i the | Recognised in Other March J1, 2024
Statementof | Comprehensive ncome
Profit and Lam
Deferred Tax Asvets -
Property, Plant and Equipment 491 A3 . 4.2
Erployes Hetefits 5 14 41 193
Allowance for expected Credit los L1 -L71 - 38
Deferred Tax Assets -121 445 4.7 1791
b) Amounts recognised in Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Current Income Tax 113,53 42.30
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Origination and reversal of Tax on Temporary Differences (7.84) (4.45)
Tax expenses for the year Tatal 105.69 37.84

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars
Before Tax | (TFax)/Benefit Net of Tax Before Tax | (Tax)/Benefit| Net of Tax
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability 4.51 (1.86) 2.65 (2.89) 0.73 (2.16)
4.51 .86) 2.65 2,89) 0.73 {2.16)
==

d) Reconcililation of [ncome Tax expenses and the accounting profit multipiied by Income tax rate

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Profit Before Tax 417.04 146.50
Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected [ncome Tax expense 104.96 36.87
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected [ncome Tax Expense
Tax effect of Non deductble expenses to reported Income Tax Expense 8.27 5.36
Others (15.06) (20.05)

Total [ Tax Exp Total 98.17 22.18




MAS Solur Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106 TZ2010PL.C016269

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Mal hampettl, Coimb e, Tamil Nadu - 641050.
Notes to Standalone Fi) ials St Jfor the pear ended March 11, 2025 (All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
7 [Inventories March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
Raw Materials 18.80 477.16 461.19
o o b d5 = AL ] 7.3
Total 18.80 486.89 470.60
8 |Trade receivables March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 | Aprll 01, 2023
(Unsecured considered good unless atherwise stated)
Ttade receivables, Considered good 1,544.19 878.18 583.21
Trads recervables, Credit impaired
1,544.19 878.18 58321
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss (34.27) (15.18) (8.38)
Total 1,509.92 863.00 574.83 |
Movement in Expected credit logs allowance: March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
Balance at the b ing of the year 15.18 8.38 .
Provision for Expected Credit Loss Created /{Reversed) 19.09 6.30 8.38
Amounts Written off - - =
Balance at the end of the year 3427 15.18 8.38
(&) Trade receivables due from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, di ora ber are as foll
Name of the Party March 31, 2025 M_.'rch 31,2024 | Aprll 01, 2023
MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 269 59 - =
Tatal LL.SQ - =

(b) There are o trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk.

() [n determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss a!lowmce. for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The
expected credit loss allowance is ranging between 0.1% and 10% and is based on the aging of the receivables,

(d) Ageing for trade reccivables from the due date of payment for each of the category is as follows:

As at March 31, 2025 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars CI:::::I:“‘ L:;::;: Q 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;:::m Y
(&) Undisputed Trade Receivabl nsidered good 436.99 494.08 10.87 579.38 - 22.86
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 5 = = = = -
i in credit risk
i) Undispuied Trad recetvable - crodit impaired 5 : : : : :
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - . = 5
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant - . . . = =
imcrease in oredit risk |
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 436,99 494.08 10,87 379.38 - 22.86
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss 0.44 -2.47 -0.11 -28.97 - -2.29
Total | 43656 491.61 10.76 550.41 - 20.58 |
As at March 31, 2024 Outstanding for follow] da from due date of payment
Particulars C'::::::“t L;‘o:::: 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo:;t:sm 3
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- idered good 610.34 5.98 31.79 175.73 5.61 43.73
(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant = 2 . 3 = z
|incTease in credit risk
(1ii) Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
\(iv) Dispoted Trado receivables - considered yood - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant - - - - - -
increase in oredit nisk
vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired B - = = = 5
Total 610.34 5.98 31.79 1758.73 __5.61 48.73
Less; Provision for Expected Credit Loss -0.61 -0.03 -0.32 -8.79 -0.56 -4.87
Total | 609.73 595 3147 166.95 5.05 43.86
As at April 01, 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Tl Cl::::::m L:ﬂm g 6 monthy - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;:.t‘l;m B
() Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good 51,08 371.04 103.32 6.76 37.99 13.01
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have sigmificant - - - - - -
|increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable - credit imapaircd - - - > - .
(1v) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - . <
(v) Disputed Trule receivables - which have sigmificant = - = E = =
mncrease in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 51.08 371.04 103.32 6.76 37.99 13.01
|Less: Provision for Expected Credit 1.0ss -0.05 -1.86 -1.03 -0.34 -3.80 -1.30
L TLI&I 5]£ 369.19 19_2_.__29 ﬁ_,_ 34.19 _11_.71__




MAS Solar Systemy Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: W06 TZ2010PLCO16269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industria Estate, Mal h i, Coimb

Notes io Standalone Finanelals S [or the pear ended March 31, 1025

e, Tamit Nadu - 641050,

(AN amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise scated)

————— e e T el

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Aprcil 01, 2023 |

0.53 046 0.18
4.14 12.97 13.97
Total 4.5;J__=q15,¢3 14.15
10 [Other Bank Balances March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2033
Balances with banks:
- deposits with remaining maturity of more than 3months but less than
12 months* 50.72 8.41 5.99
Total 50.72 &11 5.99
*Fixed Deposits are under Lien with banks against Bank Guarantees issucd. The classification above 13 based og the ariginal mamrity of
the deposits.
11 |Other current financinl assets March 31,2025 |  March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
(Unsecured considared gved unless otherwise stared) —
Security deposits 7.05 8.36 838
Acerued Interest on Fixed Deposits 1.64 0.79 109
Retention Money Deposits 17.74 21.28 21.28
Eamest Money Deposits 1.81 2.63 2,63
Withheld Amount 24,63 27.73 27.73
GST Receivable 0.46 043 -
Rent Receivable 2.55 2,40 -
Total 55.88 63.61 GL.11
12 |Other current assets March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 | April 01, 2023
(Unsecured considered good unizss otherwise stated)
Advances to suppliers 14.09 223.99 104.33
Balance with government authorities 18.78 21.29 34.38
Prepaid expenses 111 o] -
Staff advances - - 34.08
|Subsidy Receivahies 0.69 66.76 31.48
Appeal Deposit 1.25 21.25 20.94
Total 35.92 _33.1£_ 125.20




MAS Salier Syvem Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Sysiems Privasre Limited)
CIN: 0L 6TZINAPLCOI6269

Shed No 153, SIDCO Indh Escate, Mat i, Cotmbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

Noces so Standaling Mwm&m-rmxmn, Joas (AUl amount i ¢ Lakhs, unless otherwise sated)

= {b ‘ I March J1, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
[a:why share capital 1

Authorised shares I

iElllIllyShuuofR& 10/- each

L40.00,000 (March 11, 2025 2,50.00,000, March 3|, 2024 60,00,000, Apnl 01,2023 60,00,000) J
|

| Tssuesl, aubgeribed and fuily paid-up shares
60.00,000 (March 31, 2025 66,00,000, March 31, 2024 60,00,000, Apni 01,2023 50,00,000) Equty
Shares of Ry L0V aach E00.00 50000 500,00

Total issued, subwcribed and fully yaid-up shace capital (4) 1= e 0,00 |

Reconcillation of the mumber of equity sbirces Outstanding at the March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

) beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Amount
April 01, 2023 Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares
Nmﬂmmuhhmmnr&cm 000,500 600 6,000,000 500
Add  Sharos issued during the year - - i
N; of

taning s the end 5,000,000

(b) Rigtts, Preferences and Restrictions

Ewyﬂﬂu-mcﬂmhﬂwrd—arqwmmg.wmunrmwpq-m m&mumumgbuhmmmpqmmnmmmbymmaﬁm dany, 15
mjmwmwﬂhmhdnmmlmm exept i case of (merim diyidend

¥ April 01, 2023
) | Detils o charchokders holding more than 5% shares in the Holdiag March 31, 2028 Murch 31, 2024 o
© | Company: No. of shares % of Hoiding No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares

Equnythlmul'll.lomwyuid

Palaueamy Anbeztagan

487N 1,522,800 -7I%
Kuppuraj Sugansin 31545, 1,892,200 31548
fothimam Kuppursy 0,489} 29,000 049"
 Motamproce 19.37% 1,146,000 19.27%|
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 T
Di relating to p s bolding in the y
(@ =
Stiarcs held by promoters Na. of shares % of Holding No. of sharcs % of Holding No.ofstares | =00
Palamezny Abchagan 2,922,800 48.71% 2,922,800 18.71% - o.00%
Kuppury Suganthy 1.892,200 31.34% 1,892,200 31.54% . 0.00%
Jotummi Kuppury 29,000 0.48% 29,000 0.48% . 0.00%
Mobanapreetin 1,156,000 19.27%) 1,156,000 19.27% . 0:00%|
|. Total| £,000, o I - 2.00%|




MAS Sotar Sysiems Limised (Formwely known s MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CTN: J0IASTZI0LOPLCH A260

Shed No 153, SIDCO Ind Estate, Mal Colmbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

(ANl ymiunt in € Lakis, unless othermise stated) —

March 31, 1024 l April 01, 2033 % Change during the year

% of
No. of shares % of Holding ‘ No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares Holding |
2,922,800 48 71%| 2,922,800 48.71%| : 0.00%|
1,892,200 31 54% 1,160,200 19.34% 732,000 12.20%
29,060 248%. T3 e (Rae s
156,000 19 27%, 424.000 7.07% 732.000] 12204
I_ Total 1005

(e} hrbﬂﬂmﬁummdqnltyhmlbwhy way of bonus
shares or for conskderation other than cash:

Thee tuve ezt da buy back of sharse, muflhmhymolbmmMxmutdmpmmmmmwumwmmbm‘m&wdmwmmmdmmm

(] mwhnmhmm&mw&uammmwmmhmndwwm

® mmwummmmm»mwmnzoummmmmukhmz.soowm@hmxyoz.ms.

L4 | Other equity:
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
\Beserves anif Suplyy
Retained earningy
AL the bemmmning of the vear 257.75 148.89 110.48
Add: Profit duning the vear 31135 108.66 62.45
Add/ Loos : Transr / Ackjtuntimienty 0.8¢ 021 -24.05
Balance at the end of the year 569.95 25778 148.99
Ovher Items of Other Comprehemsive Tncome
At the begmning of the yetr 216 - -
mcmhmdﬂmlmhm LAs 216
Balnnce at the end of the year 49 -Li6 ]
Total Other Equity
MMW-Wmnhmﬂuﬂn;Mhmuwmuummwmm-mpﬂum" lends or other distrih paid to sharshold

mmlm/meM:muMmhmuuumwmormmLm.



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formel

CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLCD16269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

y known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
15 Nop-current harrowings March 31, March 31, | April 01
2025 2024 2023
Term Loans
Securzd logns
(i) Vehicle loan from banks 370 5.15 20.39
Total 3.70 5.15 20.39

Nature of Security

Disclosure for Secured Loans
L Indian Overseas Bank

Security The loan is secured against hypothecation of vehicles.
Repayment Loans Repayable by 30 equal monthly installment of % 0.38 lakhs commencing from 04.11.2024 to 02.10.2027
Rate of Interest 8.25% p.a
2.Yes Bank
Security The loan is secured -against hypothecation of vehicles.
Repayment Loans Repayable by 37 equal monthly installment of 2 13 lakhs commencing from 15.07.2022 to 15.07 2025
Rate of Interest 8.07% p.a
16 |Provisions March 31, March 31, April 01,
2025 2024 2023
Pravision for Gratuity - Non Current 3160 30.42 22.36
Total 31.60 30,42 22_.&
17 |Carrent Borrowings March 31, March 31, April 01,
| 2028 2024 2023
Secured loans
Working canital loan from banks 14945 251.30 361.07
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 748 15.23 16.71
: 156.93 266.54 377.78
Unsecured loans
s fronjLoans from related party 281.27 135.88 26.14
7 28127 | = 13588 26.14
Tol| _ 43621] 2] 40397
18 |Trade payables March 31, March 31, April 01,
2025 2024 2023
Trade payables
18.1| -total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small emerpnsel . 478 0.52
18.2| - total outstanding dues of vreditors other than mucro
enterprises and small enterprises 8.41 84.14 101.26
Total 8#_ 88.91 101.78
Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category mentioned above
Date of Payment as at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
(i) Tomal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - - -
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 8.41 - - -
enterprises and small enterprises
(1ii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - . - =
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - - = =
small enterprises
Total 8.41 - - -




MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formel
CIN: 40106 TZ20L0PLC016269

y known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amount in  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19

20

21

22

h 31, 2024
Particulars | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
(1) Totl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4.78 & = 2
(i) Tomal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 80.67 3.47
enterprises and small enterprises
{i1i) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - = =
fiv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - = = =
small enterprises
Total 85.44 3.47 - 2

Date of Payment as atApril 01, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for followin, riods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 0.52 - = =
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 94,51 033 - 643
enterprises and small enierprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - a =
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - ) s -
small anterprises
Total 95.02 0.33 - 6.43
Other Fimancial Liabilities March 31, March 31, April 01,
2028 2024 2023
Eucu.nty deposits from customers - - 3.99
Total - - __399 |
Other Current Liabilities March 31, March 31, April 01,
2028 2024 2023
Statutory dues 104,72 30.51 28.39
Advance received from customers 10.00 498.71 157.08
Employee Benefits Payable 9.25 3.92 5.59
Rental Advance 0.50 0.50 0.50
Other Provisions 0.62 - -
Total 125.09 533.64 191.57
Provisions March 31, March 31, April 01,
2025 2024 2023
Provision for Gratuitv - Current 134 107 059
Total 1.34 1.07 0.59
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) March 31, March 31, April 01,
2025 2024 2023
Provision for Income Tax ¢(net) 8443 | 37.84 0.79
Total 84.43 37.84 0.79

(Refer Note 6 for Tax Reconciliations)




MAS Solur Systems Limited (Formel

CIN: 40106 TZ20106PLC016269

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti,

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

y known as VLAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended

tor the year ended

23

24

26

27

28

Revenue from Operations

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Sale of Products 3,260.96 1,615.37
Sale of Services 15.50 335.65
Total 3,276.45 1,951.03
for the year ended| for the year ended
Other income 31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Interest income on fixed deposits 2.12 0.92
Rental Income 255 2.40
Expenses Written back - 43.49
Total 4.67 46.81
for the year ended| for the year ended
Cost of materials & services consumed 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventories of raw material as at the beginning of the year 486.89 470.60
Add: Purchases during the year 1,979.49 1,584.15
Less: Inventories of raw material as at the end of the year (18.80) (486.89)
Total 2,447.49 1,567.85
for the year ended| for the year ended
Employee benefits expense 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 132.97 139.92
Contribution to provident and other funds 7.10 6.00
Gratuity expense 5.96 5.66
Staff welfare expenses 16.23 3.04
Total 162.25 154.61
for the year ended| for the year ended
Finance costs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on Bank Overdraft 16.16 23.88
Interest on Term Loans 1.28 2.29
Total 17.43 26.17

for the year ended

for the year ended

Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18.40 22.91
Total 18.40 2291




MAS

Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)

CIN: 40106TZ2010PLC016269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.
Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
l forthe yearended| [Tor the year ended
29 [Other expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Documentation Charges 1.81 10.92
Power and fuel 17.05 15.40
Advertisement and sales promotion 15.48 2.12
Site Expenses 0.21 =
Designing and Consultancy Charges - 3.62
Office Expenses 731 1.57
Bank Charges 10.61 5.73
Bad Debts 13.91 Z
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 19.09 6.80
Payment to Auditors* 2.70 1.64
Rent 2.05 1.62
Travelling and conveyance 23.27 12.46
Legal and professional charges 16.92 0.83
Insurance 1.09 1.38
Rates and taxes 62.46 1.33
Job work charges 0.05 =
Printing and Stationery 1.98 2.94
Telephone & Connectivity Charges 1.87 1.80
Repairs and maintenance
- Vehicles 5.40 8.56
- Computer 1.20 0.49
- Others 12.69 0.02
Assets written off 0.18 =
Loss on Sale of PPE - 0.29
Miscellaneous expenses 1.17 0.27
Total 218.50 79.79
for the year ended| for the year ended
* Payment to Auditors 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Audit fees 2.00 1.10
For taxation matters 0.50 0.25
For other services 0.20 0.29
Total 2.70 1.64
for the year ended| for the year ended
30 Tax Expenses 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current Tax 113.53 42.30
Deferred Tax (7.84) (4.45)
Total 105.69 37.84




MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106 TZ2010PLC016269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amount in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

: For the year ended For the year ended

Tarticaiag March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Basic
1. Opening number of shares 6,000,000 6,000,000
2. Closing number of shares 6,000,000 6,000,000
3. Weighted average number of shares 6,000,000 6,000,000
4. Profit available for equity shareholders (¥ Thousand) 311.35 108.66
5 EPS (¥) 5.19 1.81
6. Nominal value of share (%) 10.00 10.00

For the year ended For the year ended

Exrticilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Diluted
1 Weighted average number of potential equity shares 6,000,000 6,000,000
2. Profit available for potential equity shareholders (2 Thousand) 31135 108.66
3EPS (Y 5.19 1.81
4. Nominal value of share (T) 10.00 10.00

31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 _April 1, 2023 |
Appeal filed for the Service Tax Demand Notice 12.44 12.44 12.44
Counter guarantees issued to the bank for the bank gurantee obtained 196.37 33.64 2397

32 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”
32.1 Deflned Contribution plans:

Employers Contribution to Employees Provident Fund recognized as expense for the year is Z 7.10 Lakhs (Previous Year 6,00 Lakhs).

32.2 Defined Benefit plans:

The Company has Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity - Unfunded. The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employee. The benefit
payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee,

1) Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of defined benefit obligation
: For the year ended For the year ended a1, 2023

ATty March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 gerill,
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 31.49 2295 2081
Interest Cost 227 1.73 1.50
Current Service Cost 3.69 3.92 3.12
Actuarial (gain)loss on obligation -4.51 2.89 -2.48
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 32.94 31.49 22.95
ii) Amount recognised in the Bal Sheet:

For the year ended For the year ended . 23

Fagficgary _March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 o s
Funded Status of Defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 32.94 31.49 2295
Fair Value of plan assets as at the end of the year - = =
Net obligation as at the end of the year 32.94 31.49 22.95
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iii) Net Gratuity Cost:

Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Services Cost (including Past Service Cost) 3.69 3.92
Interest Cost (Net of Interest Income } 227 1.73
Total 5.96 5.65
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Re-measurement due to changes in the present value resulting from 451 289
experience adjustments @50 y
Total (4.51) 2.89
Gratuity Cost in Total Comprehensive Income 1.45 8.54 |
iv) Re-measurement of the net defined benefi liability recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 |  March31,2024
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Demographic Assumption changes - -
Actuartal (Gain)Losses due to Financial Assumption changes 0.75 0.74
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experjence (5.26) 2.15
Retumn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense / S i
Income
[Net (income)/expense for the period recognised in OCI (4.51 2.89

¥) For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars F';'{:"r::;" ;;zdsw F;L":::;’;’;‘;’“ April 1, 2023
Expected returm on Plan Assets NA NA NA
Discount rate 6.84% 721% 7.55%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal Rates _ 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

vi) The following puyments are expected contributions to the projected benefits plan in future years:

ear ended For the year ended .
Eagtesiany Fol\;:::hy:!l 2025 Marchyag, 2024 ey
Within 1 Year 134 1.07 0.59
1t0 2 Years 1.25 1.00 0.54
2to 3 Years 0.92 113 052
3104 Years 15.34 0.73 0.63
4t0 5 Years 0.52 14.80 0.42
S to L0 Years 235 1.88 13.54
Abuve 10 Years 11.22 10.88 6.71

Sensitivity Analysis of significant actuarial assumption

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of

Partientars As at March 31, 202§ As a¢ Mareh 31, 2024 Apuil 1, 203
Dcouns cate Increase (1%}  Decrsase (1%)]  Increase (1%)]  Decrease (1%) Increase (1%){  Decreame (1%)
(% change compared to bese due to senwiivity) -5.56% 6.24% 6.23%| 7.00% 437 1.14%
Salary Growth Rue Incresse {1%)  Decresse (1%)  Increase (1%)] D (%) 1 (%) D (%)
(% ciaage comptred to bave due w0 sessitiviy) 7% 3.46% 261% 2.09% 7.05% 4.53%)
Withdrawnl Rare [ncrease (1%)]  Decremse (1%)]  Increase (E%) Decrease (1%)|  Meresre (%) Decreme (1%)
(% changs compired to base due to sensitivity) 0.46%) 054 0.50% 0.58% 0.43%) 231%
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These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary sk

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability

Regulatory Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in
the plan assets due to change in the legislation / regulation. The
govarnment may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the
companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect
the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation.

2025

past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

In respect of the above plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at September 11,
by a member firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and

33 Related Party Disclosure
33.1 List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships

33.2

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
MAS Solar EPC Private Limited Subsidiary Company w.e.f March 30, 2024
Palaniswamy Anbazhagan Managing Director w.e.f August 05, 2010
Mohana Preethi Director w.e.f November 01, 2021
Kuppuraj Suganthi Whole-titme director w.e.f December 15, 2013
Raju Vincent Jayaraj Director w.e.f February 14, 2025
Deviagounder Visagamoorthi Director w.e.f February 14, 2025
Sampath Kumar Suresh CFO w.e.f October 01, 2024
Ammayappan Arjunan Company Secretary w.e.f October 01, 2024
Related Party Transaction during the year and Bal at the end of Year
. N y For the year ended For thie year ended
ST L T March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Goods - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 0.25 333.15
Rent Income - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 240 2.40
Investments - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited - 61.98
Remuneration to KMP - Palaniswamy Anbazhagan 27.00 33.00
Remuneration to KMP - Kuppuraj Suganthi 18.00 24.00
Remuneration to KMP - Mohana Preethi 15.00 18.00
Receipts - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 207.20 -
Payments - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 474 45 -
Particulars - Balances March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Payables to related party - Palaniswamy Anbazhagan 112.01 47.80 4.56
Payables to related party - Kuppuraj Suganthi 93.73 47.22 12.35
Payables to related party - Mohana Preethi 60.53 28.94 9.23
Payables to related party - Jothimani Kuppuraj 15.00 11.92 -
Payables to related party - Security Deposits - MAS Solar EPC Private
Limited 0.50 0.50 0.50
Payables to related party - MAS Soler EPC Private Limited - 0.35 -
Receivables from related party - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 269.59 - -
Investments - MAS Solar EPC Private Limited 61.98 6198 -




MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 40106TZ2010PLC016269
Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050.

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Leases
During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has incurred expenses amounting to ¥ 2.05 Lakhs and 1.62
Lakhs respectively on short term lease and lease of low value assets (Refer Note No. 29).
The leased building premises are used to carry out business operations and related support activities. The future cash outflows on lease
payments are fixed in nature, subject to escalations. The lease agreements tenor extensions and termination conditions are subject to
respective lease agreements.

35 Financial Instruments
35.1 Capital Management
The Company’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders for meeting the long-term and short-term goals
of the Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual and long-term operating plans and strategic investment
plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company monitors the capital
structure on the basis of Net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes paid up equity share capital, securities premium and all other Teserves
attributabie to the equity shareholders. Net debt includes all the long-term and short-term borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents.

The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Equity 1,170.43 855.59 748.89
Debt 44191 407.58 42431
Cash and cash equivalents 4.67 13.43 14.15
Other Bank Balances 50.72 8.41 5.99
Net debt 386.51 385.74 404.16
Total Capital (equity + net debt) 1,556.95 1,241.33 1,153.05
Net debt to capital ratio 0.25 0.31 0.35

35.2 Accounting Classification and Fair Values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented below. I does nat include the fair value .
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation

of fair value.
March 31, 2028 Carrying amount
Particulars Amortised Cost Total
Pinancial Assets
Non-current
(i) Investments 61.98 61.98
(ii) Other financial assets 21.83 21.83
Current
(i) Trade receivables 1,509.92 1,509.92
(it) Cash and cash equivalents 4.67 4.67
(iii) Other financial assets 55.88 55.88
Total financial assets 1,654.27 1,654.27

Financial liabilities
Non-current
(i) Borrowings 370 3.70
Current
(1) Borrowings 438.21 43821
(ii) Trade payables 8.41 841
(iii) Other financial liabilities - -

Total financial liabilities 450.32 45032
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March 31, 2024 Carrying amount
Particulars Amortised Cost Total
Financial Assets
Non-gurrent
(i) [nvestments 61.98 61.98
(ii) Other financial assets 22.46 22.46
Current
(i) Trade receivabies 863.00 863.00
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 13.43 13.43
(i1i) Other financial assets 63.61 63.61
Total financial assets 1,024.48 1,024.48

Financial liabilities
Non-current
(i) Borrowings 5.15 5.15
Current
(i) Borrowings 402.42 402.42
(i) Trade payables 8391 88.91
(iil) Other financial linbilities < -

Total financial linbilities 496.49 496.49

April 1,2023 Carrying amount
Particulars Amortised Cost Total
Financial Assets
Non-current
(1) [nvestments - -
(ii) Other financial assets 2321 23.21
Current
(1) Trade receivables 574.83 574.83
(ii) Cash end cash equivalents 14.15 14.15
(1ii) Other financial assets 61.11 61.11
Total financial assets 67331 673.31

Financial liabilities
Non-current
(1) Borrowings 20.39 20.39
Current
(1) Borrowings 403.92 4U3.92
(ii) Trade payables 101.78 101.78
(iii) Other financial liabiljties 3.99 » 3.99

Total financial liabilities 530.08 539.08
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33.3 Knancial Risk Vanagement Policies

The Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments.
with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk managems
management commuttee is o assess the un

financial of the Company

currency exchange rates, credit, liquidity and interest risks, which muy
The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated
nt policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The focus of the risk
predictability of the financial environment and to mitigate potential adverse effects on the

tem Primarily affected by Risk management policies
Foreign cumency transactions, its Mitigating foreign currency risk using
Market risk ~ outstanding balances and exposurs foreign currancy forward contracts, option
Currency risk towards trade payables, exports, and | contracts and curtency swaps.
long-term borowings.
Maintaining a combination of fixed and
Market risk ) . floating rate debt; interest rate swaps for
Interest rate risk Change in markst interest rates long-term bormowings; cash management
policies
Market rick - Change in prices of commodity and | Monitoring  forecasts of csh  Aows
Reice risk value of equity instruments diversification of portfolic
Ability of customers or counterpartias | Credit approval and monitoring practices;
Credit risk to financial instruments to meet | COunterparty cedit polices and bmits:
contractual obligations arangements with finandal institutions
Preparing and monitoring forecasts of cash
iquidity risk Fluctuations in cash flows flows: cash management policies: muftiple-
Liuidkty " year credit and banking facilities
35.4 Market Risk
The Company’s investments are primarily in fixed rate interest bearing investment. Hence the company's is not significantly exposed to

interest rate risk. The Company’

35.5 Credit Risk

Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of
risks. The Company is exposed to credit risk from

§ eXposure to market risk is on account of foreign currency exchange rate is nil.

default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of
its operating activities (primarily trads receivables) and from its investing activities

inctuding deposits with banks,

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Trade receivables 1,509.92 863.00 574.83
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 55.39 21.834 20.15
Other financial assets 55.88 6361 6L.11

Total 1,621.19 948.45 636.09

The following table shows details of provision for Expected credit loss on trade receivables:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Balance at the begenning of the year 15.18 8.38 -
Provision for Expected Credit Loss Created /(Reversed) 19.09 . 6.80 8.38
Amounts Written off - - P
Balance at the end of the year 34.27 15.18 8.38
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35.6 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company also constantly monitors
funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintain financial flexibility.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile remaining contractual maturity period at the balance sheet date for its financial
liabilitics based on the undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual cash flows - Undiscounted
March 31, 2025 Carrying amount Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings 44191 438.21 3.70
Trade payables 8.41 841 =
Contractual cash flows - Undiscounted
March 31, 2024 Carrying amount Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings 407.58 402.42 515
Trade payables 88.91 8891 -
: Contractual cash flows - Undiscounted
April 1, 2023 Carrying amount Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Borrowings 42431 1.07 423 24
Trade payables 101.78 101.78 -
Other financial liabilities 399 3.99 -

36 Segment Reporting
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The
CODM as identified by the Board of Directors include the Executive and the other Directors but do not include the Independent
Directors.

The company on a basis operates in the business seguent of services related W Renewal coergy sulutions and heace there is only one
business segment. The company on a basis is primarily operating in India, which is considered as single geographical segment.
Accordingly, segment information has not been separately disclosed.

37 Additional Disclosures
a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company is not covered under the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and hence additional disclosure related to
Corporate Social responsibility is not applicable.

b) Default on Bank Loans )

The Company has availed borrowings from banks. There have been no defaults in repayment of principal or imterest on such ‘
borrowings as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, disclosures relating te defaults in repayment of horrowings are
not applicable.

¢) Details of Benami Property Held:
No proceedings have been initiated on or-are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
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d) Wilful Defaulter .
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority
e) Relationship With Struck Off Companies ]
The Company has no transactions with the companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section
560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the current or previous year.
f) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
g) Compliance With Number of Layers of Companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
h) Undisclosed Income ) )
The company does not have any transaction recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed. 2s income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevaat provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961).
i) Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible
Asset
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year
J) Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of
Companies .
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
k) Title Deed of Immovable Property not held in name of the
Company
The Company does not have any investment property Title deed of which not held in name of the Company
1) Others
There are no funds that have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or shareprmn_iu:.n or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermedmne.f;”); w1t|1 the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. o ] ) e .
There have been no funds that have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including forel.gn .snutles ( Fund¥ng
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or derectly: le.nd or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on bebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
38 Financial Ratios
For the year Eor the year 25%

SNo Ratlo/Mensure March 31, o 3L, Variance Reasons for variance bevond

1 |Current Ratio 437 177 146 89% | Decraoage in current Hability.

2 |Debt-Equity Ratio 038 .48 -20.83%

3 |Retuwn on Equity Ratie 631 013|  138.46%|Increase in Net Profit.

4 |Eaventory turoves tatio 9.68 327|  196.02%|Decrease in average inventory.

5 mn’f“’ oo bl o 276 zn 1.85%

6 § I Y ok e 8631 2631|  228.05%|Decrease in average trade payables.
| |matio

7 [Nt capital mrnover ratie 254 254 0.00%

§ |Net profit ratio 0.10 0.03% 106.00% | Increase in Net Profit. —

9 |Return on Capital employed 0.30 01z| 150.00% h“mm 8 DI bedure intarest

10 |Ratumn o investment Nil Nil NA

Explanation provided for any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year
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39 Vuluntary First-time Adoption of indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These are the Company’s first annual financial statements prepared voluntarily in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

Untl the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (Previous GAAP).

The Company has voluntarily adopted Ind AS with effect from | April 2023 (the transition date) and accordingly these financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2025 are the first financial statements prepared in compliance with Ind AS

The Company has prepared its opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2023 in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards.

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively, wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities in the fi nancial statements under both Ind AS and Previous GAAP as of the transition date have been
recognized directly in equity at the transition date

In preparing this financial statements, the Company has availed itself of the certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101
as explained below:
a) Optional Exemptions from retrospective application availed

i) Property, Plant and Equipmeant Exemption

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in
the fi nancial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date
of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 “Intangible Assets’. Accordingly, the Company has
clected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

b) Mandatory exceptions from retrospective application
iy Estimates

An entity’s cstimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that
thoso estimates were in crror. On assessient uf Lhe estimutes made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has

eanchided that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, ea there is no objective cvidence of an crror in those cstimatcs,
However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant
reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date as listed below:

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

- Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities excluding derivatives.

i) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or
after the date of transition to [nd AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a fi rst-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109
retrospectively from a date of the entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to fi nancial assets and financial
liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for the transaction occurring on or after the date
of transition to Ind AS.

iii) Classification and measurement of financial assets

As required under Ind AS 101, the Company has classified and measured the financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances
avioting ot tha data af trancitine ¢ Tnd A Q
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¢) Transition to IND AS - Reconciliation

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantifications of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to

Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101 :

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile €quity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent

the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition April 01, 2023

Particulars Notes R[:}g::[].)f 2 Mea&t;;e:lsent IND AS
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 105.63 0.73 106.36
(b) Financial Assets
(i) [nvestments 4 -
(ii) Others Non-Current Financial Assets 5 23.21 0.00 23.21
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 526 7.53 12,79
Total Non-Current Assets 134.10 8.27 142.37
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 470.60 -0.00 470.60
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 583.21 -8.38 574.83
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 14,15 0.00 14.15
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 10 - 599 599
(iv) Others Current Financial Assets 11 67.11 -6.00 6111
(c) Other Current Assets 12 247.31 -22.11 22520
Total Current Assets 1,382,38 (30.49) 1,351.89
Total Assets 1,516.48 _(22.22) 1.494.26 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 600.00 - 600.00
(b) Other Equity 14 172.93 -24.04 148.89
Total Equity 772.93 (24.04) 748.89
Liabilities
(A) Non-Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
(i) Barrowings 15 124.07 -103.68 20.35
(b) Provisions 16 G 22.36 2236
Total Non-Current Liabilities 124.07 -81.32 42.75
(B) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 300.24 103.68 40392
(i) Trade Payables 18
(b) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small 18.1
enterprises - 0.52 0.52
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 182
enterprises and Small enterprises 100.73 0.53 101.26
(iti) Other Financial Liabilities 19 3.99 0.00 399
(b) Provisions 20 0.59 0.59
(¢) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 22.95 -22.16 0.79
(d) Other Current Liabilities 22 191.57 -0.00 191.57
Total Current Liabilities 619.48 83.15 702.63
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,516.48 | -22.22 | 1,494.26

* As the presentation requirements under [GAAP differ from Ind AS, the IGAAP information has been regrouped for ease and facilitation of

reconciliation with Ind AS
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(All amount in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
mﬁmty @9 at viarch 31, 2024
Particulars Notes GAAP Me:.;ll;er; ne- IND AS
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 83.19 0.82 8401
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 61.98 -0.00 6198
(ii) Others Non Current Financial Assets 5 22.46 0.00 2246
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 6.64 11.33 17.97
Total Non-Current Assets 174.27 12.16 186.43
Curreat Assets
(a) Inventories 7 486.89 000 486.89
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Trade Receivables 8 878.18 -15.18 863.00
(i1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 13.43 -0.00 1343
(ii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 10 - 841 8 41
(iv) Others Current Financial Assets It 72.02 -8.41 63.61
(@) Other Current Assets 12 333.29 0.01 333.28
Total Current Assets 1,783.81 (15.19) 1,768.62
Total Assets 1.95;.28 (3.03) 1,955.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 600.00 - 600.00
(b) Other Equity 14 291.60 -36.01 255.59
Total Equity 891.60 (36.01) 855.59
Liabilities
(A) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings "15 79.07 73.92 5.15
(b) Provisions 16 - 3042 30.42
Total Non-Current Liabilities 79.07 43.49 35.58
(B) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 328.50 7392 40242
(ii) Trade Payables 18
(b) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small 18.1
enterprises - 478 4.78
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 182
enterprises and Small enterprises 87.07 -2.93 84.14
(iir) Other Financia! Liabilities 19 - = =
(b) Provisions 20 - 1.07 1.07
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 37.84 <0.00 37.84
(d) Other Current Liabilities 22 534.00 -0.36 533.64
Total Current Liabilities 987.41 76.47 1,063.88
1.958.08 | -3.03 | 1,955.05

Total Equity and Liabilities
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{All amount in T Lakhs,

Reconciliation of Total Comprehenssive Income for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Notes GAAP Me‘;;:];e:; nt IND AS
Income:
Revenue from Operations 23 1,951.03 -0.00 1,951.03
Other Income 24 54.10 -7.29 46.81
Total Income (1+2) 2,005.13 (7.29) 1.997.84
Expenses
(a) Cost of materials & services consumed 25 [,123.95 443.90 1,567.85
(b) Employee benefits expense 26 148.25 6.36 154.61
(¢) Finance costs 27 26.33 -0.16 26.17
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 23.12 0.21 2291
{€) Other expenses 29 524.29 -444 .50 7279
Total Expenses 1,845.94 5.40 1,851.34
Profit before tax (3 - 4)
139.19 (12.69) 146.50
Tax expense 30
(a) Current tax 42.23 0.07 42.30
(b) Deferred tax -1.38 -3.07 (4.45)
Total Tax expense 40.85 (3.01) 37.84
Profit for the period / year (5-6) 118.34 (9.68) 108.66
Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans - -2.89 (2.89)
[ncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - 0.73 0.73
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss. in subsequent
periods: - - =
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss - - =
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -2.16 (2.16)
Total comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 118.34 (11.84) 106.50
Impact of [nd AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2014
Particulars GAAP M'ei;;lll)'ersent IND AS
NET CASH FROM/USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES A 107.23 0.73 | 106.50
NET CASH FROM /USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES B -62.95 (1.38) (64.33)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES C -45.00 2.10 (42.90)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 0.72 (0.00) (0.72)
Add: Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (April 1, 2023) 14.15 0.00 14 15
Eh & Cash equivalents as at the end of the year (March 31, 2024) 13.43 0.00 13.43

Notes to reconciliations;
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

IND AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect 1o continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in
the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as it's deemed cost as at the date
of transition. Accordingly the Compnay has elected to measure of it's peoperty, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value

(ii) Expected Credit Eoss

Represents impact on account of creating additional (allowance) / reversal of provision on trade receivables based on the requirements of Ind

AS 109 Financial [nstruments.

(iii) Retained earnings

Retained earnings as at April 1, 2023 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
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(iv) Re-measurements of post-employment beuefit obligations

Under Ind AS, re-measurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP,
these re-measurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. There is no impact on the total equity and profit.

(v) Deferred Taxes
Deferred Tax has been recognised on the adjustments made on transition to [nd AS

(vi) Other Comprehensive Income

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis
Under Indian GAAP, actuarial gains and losses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, however in Ind AS, the actuarial gain and
losses are recognised through Other Comprehensive Income

40 Subsequent Events

41

(i) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, pursuant to approval of the Registrar of Compenies, the Company has been converted from a Private
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company with effect from June 18, 2025. Accordingly, the name of the Company has been chgnged» from
MAS Solar Systems Private Limited to MAS Solar Systems Limited. This event does not affect the amounts reported in these financial
staternents

(ii) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company has made a rights issue of 30,00,000 equity shares of Z10 each per share, aggregating to
¥300 Lakhs, which was duly allotted on May 23, 2025 Consequently, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company stands increased
from 600 Lakhs to 900 Lakhs. This event does not affect the financial position as at March 31, 2025, and hence has not been recognized in
these financial statements.

Comparative Figures

Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped or restated, wherever necessery, to conform to the current year’s
classification and Presentation.

As per our report of even date attached

For T Nagaraju & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known 2s MAS Solar
Firm registration number: 0251678 Systems Private Limited)

L}
2,
3. ¥ < Sy
Palaniswamy Anbazhagan  Kuppuraj Suganthi
Managing Director Whele-time director
T NAGARAJU DIN: 01893658 DIN: 06906063
Partner
Membership No: 029312

Sampath Kumar Suresh Ammayappan Arjunan
CFO Company Secretary
ICSI M.No.: F8665
Place : Coimbatore Place : Coimbatore
Date : September 05, 2025 Date : September 05, 2025

AT @mounr in ¢ Cakhs, unleys otherwise stared
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Note No. 1: Company Overview

MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited), a company
incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on August 5, 2010 in the well-equiped
Industrial Estate in Coimbattore which is Manchester of South India. MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely
known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited) stated to focus completely on solar energy and its
applications. MAS Solar Systems Limited (F ormely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited) is one
of the Largest Solar PV Modules Manufacturers in India. We provide solutions for power related to various
Industries, Institution, Domestic & Commercial porpuse. We also tie-up with Renewal Research Institutions

& Industries for Product development, Testing & Certifications, Training and Awarness program.

MAS Solar Systems Limited (formerly known as “MAS Solar Systems Private Limited”) was originally
incorporated as a private limited company on August 05, 2010 with CIN: 40106TZ2010PTC016269 under
the provisions of The Companies Act, 1956. The company has its registered office at Shed No 153, Sidco

[ndustrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, 641050, Tamil Nadu.

Subsequently, Company was converted into Public Limited Company vide special resolution passed by our
shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 02, 2025 and the name of the Company
was changed to MAS Solar Systems Limited (‘the Company") pursuant to issuance of Fresh Certificate of

Incorporation dated June 18, 2025 Registrar of Companies, with CIN:40106TZ2010PLC016269.

The Company has acquired 98 percentage of shares in MAS Solar EPC Private Limited on March 30, 2024,

L 3
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been approved by the

Board of Directors on September 15, 2025.
Note No.: 2 Material Accounting Policies and Other Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

(a) Statem-ent of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company as at and tor the year ended 3 1st March, 2025 have been prepared
and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], and presentation
requirements of Division IT of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and
other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India. The financial
statements up to the year ended March 3 1, 2024 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP™) and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

These financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements and are covered by Ind AS
101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from
the accounting principles generally accepted in India (“Indian GAAP”) which is considered as the “Previous
GAAP” for purposes of Ind AS 101. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the

Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flow is provided in Note 36.
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(b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis of

accounting, unless otherwise stated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the

inputs to the fair value Mmeasurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(c) Consistency of Accounting Policy

(d) Functional Currency and Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR (‘Z’) which is also the functional currency of the Company,
and all the values are rounded off to the nearest Lakhs (INR Lakh’s) except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Current and Non-Current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-
classification. An asset is classified as current if:
(a) itis expected to be realized or sold or consumed in the Company's normal operating cycle;
(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

current

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current if

(2) itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;

(d) it has no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company's normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.3 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

(@)

(b)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates, judgement and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies requires critical accounting estimates
involving complex and subjective judgements. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the
Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Application of accounting
policies that require critical accounting estimates involving judgements and the use of assumptions in the
financial statements have been disclosed below:

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of
the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of Company's assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired
and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future everts, which may impact their life, such
as changes in technology.

Allowance for trade receivables and other financial assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, credit risk,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history of collections,
customer’s credit-worthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.
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Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, compensated absences and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are determined based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, future attrition rates and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is measured using appropriate valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable sources where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of Jjudgement is required in establishing fair values. J udgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

Taxes

The Company’s major tax Jurisdictions are in India. Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation
of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income of
the Company’s operations in India. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,
for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities and reflects uncertainties relating to income
taxes, if any. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax -
authority. A tax assessment could involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Judgements include estimating the probability
of the cash outflows for the present obligations and accordingly provisions are determined and reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

The Company uses significant judgement to identify and measure contingent liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it
is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
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estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities in relation to assessment/litigations can

involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

2.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services. Revenue for services, as rendered, is recognised only after persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

Sale of Goods - Sales are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

are transferred to the buyer as per terms of contract.

Rendering of Service - Incorme and fees from services are accounted as per terms of relevant contractual

agreements/ arrangements as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

Interest Income - For all financia] assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial

asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other

income in the statement of profit and loss.

Measurement:

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract or arrangements with the customer which create rights and performance
obligations and are legally enforceable. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers. Contracts are
subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Company
reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, on the basis of which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a

cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or its deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the

Written down value method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows;



MAS Solar Systems Limited (Formely known as MAS Solar Systems Private Limited)
CIN: 401 06TZ2010PLC016269

Shed No 153, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Malumachampatti, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641050,

Notes to Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

, Asset J Estimated Useful Life (in years)__—I
Buildng | 30

Plant and Machinery 15 —i
| Furniture and Fixtures 10
’?omputer 3
f?)fﬁce Equipments 5
Behicles 8

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at the end of each

financial year.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of DProfit
and Luss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.6 Leases

(i) The contract involves the yse of an identified asset

(ii) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period

of the lease and

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all leage arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the
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lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. After the commencement date, the lease liability is
adjusted by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications. The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if therc is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero. The interest on the lease liability is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss
except to the extent that it can be allocated to any Property, Plant & Equipment.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating leases. When the Company is an
intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

2.7 Financial Instruments
L.11.1 Initial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument, All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on
initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities, that are not fair valued through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
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1.11.2 Subsequent Measurement
i) Non-Derivative Financial Instruments

a) Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates and by
sale. Further, in cases where the company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model,
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI).

¢) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair

value through profit and loss.

d) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the cffective interest method, except
for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance
Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short-term maturity of these

instruments.
ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

a) Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

The derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value js positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value s

negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in OCI and later

reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects the profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
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»  Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

> Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability.

At present no hedging instrument is used by the Company.
1.11.3 Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financia] asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party and does not retain control of the asset. The Company continues to recognise

the asset to the extent of Company’s continuing involvement.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a new lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.11.4 Equity Instruments

An equity instrument js any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. '

L.11.5 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts are presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Impairment
a) Financial Assets other than investments held in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial position whether a financial asset in form of
trade receivables and unbilled receivables is impaired. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company
applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. As a
practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its
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trade reccivables and unbilled receivables. The provision matrix is based on available external and
internal credit risk factors such as credit default, credit rating from credit rating agencies and Company’s
historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and unbilled receivables.
ECL impairment loss allowance or reversa] is recognised during the period as expense or income
respectively in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
change in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment of testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the assets. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount
of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net if any accumulated amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

2.9 Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprise current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax for current and prior periods recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax asset and liabilities are recognized
for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to
extent that it is probable future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax
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liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is expected that the
earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.11 Employee Benefits

1.11.1 Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering
eligible employees of MAS Solar EPC Private Limited. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or
liability. Gains and losses through remeasurements of the net defined liability/ (assets) are recognized in
the other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The effect
of any plan amendment is recognized in net profits in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.11.2 Provident Fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the
eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to this provident fund plan equal to a
specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan
are deposited in a government administered provident fund. The Company has no further obligation to the
plan beyond its monthly contributions.

1.11.3 Compensated Absences

The employees of the Company are not entitled to compensated absences and hence does not recognise
for compensated absences.

1.11.4 Short term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of the rendering of services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, allowances, expected cost of bonus etc. are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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2.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

2.13 Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivables had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a
later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any shares splits and bonus share issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of directors.

2.14 Statement of Cash Flows

Cash tlows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event; it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the management’s best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Contingent assets: A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain firture events not wholly
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within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed only when an inflow of

economic benefits is probable.

of transaction of a Non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Cash

flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.15 Provisions and Contingencies
2.16 Cash dividend to the equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final
dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim

dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

2.17 Exceptional items

Exceptional Items include income/expenses that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however
of such significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the users of financial statements to
understand the impact in more meaningful manner. Exceptional Items are identified by virtue of their

size, nature and incidence.

2.18 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 —
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does

not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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